
 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact Alex 
Daynes on 01733 452447. 
 

 

ABABABAB    
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
MEETING STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 

DATE: WEDNESDAY 9 JUNE 2010 
 

TIME: 7.00 pm 
 

VENUE: BOURGES ROOM - TOWN HALL 
 

CONTACT: Alex Daynes 
Telephone: 01733 452447 
e-mail address alexander.daynes@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

Despatch date: 1 June 2010 

 

AGENDA  

 PAGE NO 

 
1. Apologies 

 
 

2. Declaration of Interests (if any) 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have an interest, whether 
personal or prejudicial, in any of the items on the agenda. Members must 
also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in relation to any 
items under consideration. 
 

 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 17 March 2010 
 

1 - 4 

4. Monitoring Officer's Report 
 

5 - 42 

 To receive and comment on a report form the Monitoring Officer. 
 

 

5. Annual Report for Council 
 

43 - 48 

 To receive and comment on the Annual Report to be submitted to full 
Council. 
 

 

6. Date of Next Meeting 
 

 

 The date of the next meeting is 8 September with a provisional date on 7 
July. 

 

Public Document Pack



MEMBERS OF STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
Independent: S Boast (Chairman), A Smith (Vice-Chairman), D Whiles, B Fearon, O Menendez 
Councillors: A Miners, M Todd, N Khan, D Fower & G Murphy 
Parish Councillors: P Froggitt and D Batty 
 
Subs: R Nesbitt, Councillors: Z Hussain, R Dobbs, N Sandford, C W Swift and S Goldspink 
 
 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 

 



������������
�
��������	
����������	
����������������	�����������������������������		�����	���������

	����������������
�
�
��� ����!����"�#�
�
�� 	����$��������%&�'�������$�������������%&���"��(���&� �)���	������*��������+�
�	������	���'���������������	���
!�������	������	���,� ���-�
�
*)).�����!����"�#�
�
/������-��&������	
�0�����	���������
'��1�,�-���&�����	��2	3��������*

�����
�
�
�

��� ������	
���
�
'4	�	��������������3���
�	��,�3���5�����������	������	��)�	���6�
�
�

��� 
������	���������
�
�����	��������
�
"	����������	���	
��������������������3��6�
�
�����	�������������� ����� ������������	�� ��� .����7�	
� ����������(�� ����(-�������	��� �	�
���	����������4����������(�����	�(����4������������-���(���6�
�
�

��� �	���
�������
��

�	����
�����������������������
�
������������	
�����������������	���8�9�����-������������44�	3��������������������������
���	��6�
�
�

 �� !
����������
����	���	���"��	�
���
�
����,�4��-��	���	����*

���������	������������4	��&��4���������(����	������
	��	���#�
�

•� 0	����,��	����-�5��:;�

•� .������	��	
��������(����
�
���(�����14��������	�������������

���������������	������������������������	��4�	3������	�
����-���������	������4����������(����	
������	�����6�������������������	�����������(����
������	�
�������������-���	���������������6�
�
�	�4�������
�
�����	��������������3����������	���
��������	�4����������(���������3�������������4��3�	���
����������� ����4�	3���	�����������	�����'4�������� ��:��-� �	�	������������������������
��(��	�������6�
�

Public Document Pack

1



.�����	
�.��������
�
���(���������3�������3	��������-����
	��!�������������3��	��������!�	�����	���	��������
��������
�	��9�������<��	�,����(������<����������	��������
	���	�������������4��������
	
�3	����	������������	
�����	
�4	�����������46�
�
���� �	�������� ���� �4������ 	�� ���������� 
	�� ������� ������� ��������� 4�	4	����� �	�
����������� ���� �	�4������� 4�	����� ��������� ������� 4	����� 
	�� ���� ��������� �	� �������
�	�4���������������	
�����(��	�����������������4��
�����	���	
��	�����6�
�
5	�:�!�	������
�
���(�������������� ������3��	4�����	
���������(4��� 
	�� �����	��������������1��4����

�	��  	��	�&� "��������� ���� �	���� ���(���������� �	������� (���� 4�	3����6� � ���(����
�������������
	�����	��	���	���	��	�4�������	����(���������&��	�����
	�����	���(	��������
�	���������� �� �	�4������ ��	���� (�� 4�	3����&� �	��	�� =�����	��� ���� �������� �	���� (��
��������������	�����
	�����	���(	��������	�4�������4�	������	����(���������	����	��������
��(4��6�
�
���(���� '2���,� �	� �������� �� ��3���� 	
� ���� ���(��>*

����� 4�	�	�	�� ��� ���� �	�:�
4�	�����6� ����(���� 	
� ���� �	�������� 
������� '2���,� �	� �������� ���� 4�	4	���� 3������
����(�������������	�������	�:�4�	������
	��	������������
�	������������
	��������6�
�

#�� !��
������
����
�
��
����
�$
����
�
������4��-��	���	����*

�������3��������(������������	��������	���
�	�������	��������
�	����(����(��������	��	�������������#�
� �

•� �����	������	��
	������������	
����������������	��������
	�� �����	������3���-���;�
����

•� �1������� ������1�����4��������� �����	
�	

���� 
	�� ����4����������(���� �	� ������
�	�������3�������6�

�
������4��-��	���	����*

����� 
������� ���	�������� ��������(���� �����3���� ��4	���	�� ����
������	
���
�������	
����������������	������������������(��	������������������1��������6�
�
5���� �������������	
� �������(����4������&�������	��� ��������������	��	�� ���� �	���	
� ����
����4������� ���(���� 	�� ���� �	�������6� � ���(���� ��(����� ���� ����� 	
� 	

���� 
	��
����4����������(����	
������	�������6��.������������������(������������#�
�

•� )���������-�������	������	���	
��	�����3������(���;�

•� /�	�����������14��������������(-��	�������3������(���;�

•� ���	���������	
��������(�����	�?	��;�

•� !�������	�������������������	
��������(���;�

•� �����(����-�	
������������@���	�	����44������	��4�	����;�

•� ,�3��	4�����	
��1���������(���������������(�����������(���6�
�
���(�����%!&&� (-���?	���-� ����� ������ ��	���� (�� �	� 4������ �44	�������� 4�	����� ����
�����
	��������	�����4����������(����������-�4�������������	����	�������3���������
�������
�����	
��44	����������	����(�����	���;��	�����-��	�����������
	����������������6�
�
���(�����	��������(-���(���������������������4�	��������
	������4����������(����	
�����
�	�������6� ����(�����%!&&� �����������������������������4�	�������	�����������(�������
���������
	���������(������	����(���	����	(���6�
�
���(�������	���(��������������������4�	
��	���������������(��	��������6��'���	�������
�	������ �	���� �44	���� ���� ��������� ���� ����� ��������&� ���� �	�������� �	���� ��:��

2



���	��������	�������	���	��������	����(�6��*�����	��������+�4�	4	�������3�� 	�����	�(��
��������� 
	�� ���� ��1�� ������4��� -���&� ����� ���� ���	����� (-� ����� �	��6� � ���� �	��������
���(�����%!&&� �	� ���	������ ���3��  	���� ��� ��������6� � ����� �	��� 4�	4	���� '����
������(��������������������*�����	��������+����	���������6� ������	�����������(����
�%!&&��	����	������'������������������������������6�����(�����%!&&�������	���
����4����������(������	����(��������	���������(��	��������6�
�

'�� !
�����
��!
������
�
���(��������3�������4	����3���������������	
���=�����	�������������	������	������	����	�����
������3�����	�������	�:�	
������	�������6���
�
���(���� ���������� ���� �������� ���� ���4	����� 	
� ���� =�����	������6� � ���� �	��������
�	�������������������8��4��������	
��	������	������4	������	�����=�����	�����������������
�� �	�� ���4	���6� � ���(���� ��=������� ���� �������� (�� (�	:��� �	��� ���	� 4	�������� �	�4�6��
���(����4�	4	�����������������	�������	���	
��	���������������������������(����������
����4���
����	�������������������������������������	��������(���6�����(�����%!&&������
!�������������3��	��������!�	�����	�&�0������������'������	���������������44�	���������
����
��������������
	���������6�������	���������%!&&���������(����������44�	�����������
����=�����	�������������������������	
�����4���������	����3����	�"���(	���		���	�������
�	������
�������	�����������������������3��6��
�
����,�4��-��	���	����*

������������	�4���������
	�����	���3������*

�����A� �������	����	�
�����	������������	�����������	������3�����	��������	���6�
�

(�� ��
����)
*���

�	����
�
������1��4�	3���	��������������	����������'4��������6�
�
�
�
�
�
�

��'.��'"�
�6������B6C7�4��

3



This page is intentionally left blank

4



 

 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

9 June 2010 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Monitoring Officer Helen Edwards Solicitor to the Council Tel. 452539 

Report author Kim Sawyer Head of Legal Services and Deputy Monitoring 
Officer 

Tel: 452361 

 
REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
 

1. That the Committee members note the contents of this report 
 

 
 
CONTENTS OF REPORT 
 

1. This report contains the following items for consideration: 
 

• Update on minutes of last meeting; 

• Report on any complaints made and progress on any investigations; 

• Note items of interest issuing from Standards for England, Strategic Governance 
Board etc; 

• Progress against the work programme; 

• Planning Committee voting analysis. 
 
 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

2. Update on minutes of last meeting 

  
2.1 Induction of new members: Following the local elections in May there were three new 

members appointed to the Council, one of which had formerly been a Councillor.  The 
induction programme was therefore directed to these three members rather than being a 
training programme for the entire membership of the Council.  The training did include 
Code of Conduct issues.  Members of the Planning Committee also receive specific 
training in relation to their work on that Committee. 

 
2.2 Training for members of the Standards Committee: In discussing the induction of new 

members at the last meeting of the Standards Committee it was noted by several members 
that they had not taken part in any induction process.  It is proposed therefore that the next 
provisional meeting of the Standards Committee which is not required to sit to hear 
complaints under the Code be replaced by an induction and training session for members 
of the Committee. 

 
 
3. Complaints 
 
3.1 The regular update on any complaints received or matters referred for investigation is 

attached at appendix 1. 
 

5



 
4. Items of interest 
 
4.1 Planning Committee voting analysis: The Planning Committee voting analysis is attached 

at appendix 2 
 
4.2 New Government information: The Government has announced in its manifesto entitled 

“The coalition: our plans for Government” that it intends to abolish the Standards Board 
regime.  A “Decentralisation and Localism” bill was announced during the Queen’s speech 
on 25 May which re-iterated the intention to abolish the Standards Board regime. No 
further detail is yet available on when this is likely to take place or whether this means that 
the Code of Conduct will survive the abolition of the Standards Board.  Further information 
will be provided to the Committee as this becomes available. 

 
4.3 Annual Governance Statement has been prepared in draft and issued for initial 

consideration by the Audit Committee on the 7 June.  The Internal Audit team welcome any 
comments from the Standards Committee on the member governance issues within the 
Statement which will be collated with other comments before final consideration by the 
Audit Committee at the end of June.  The Annual Governance Statement is attached at 
appendix 3. 

 
4.4 Standards for England annual return: There is a statutory requirement to complete an 

annual return to the Standards for England on the work of the Standards Committee.  A 
copy of the Council’s annual return is attached at appendix 4. 

 
 
5. Work programme 
 
5.1 The work programme is attached at appendix 5.   
 
CONSULTATION 
 
6. A copy of this report is sent to each parish council and they are invited to comment upon 

the contents.  Any response from the parishes will be verbally reported to the Committee. 
 
APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1: Complaint monitoring report 
Appendix 2: Planning Committee voting analysis 
Appendix 3: Annual Governance Statement 
Appendix 4: Annual return 
Appendix 5: Work programme 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
  

None. 
 

6



STANDARDS COMMITTEE: COMPLAINT MONITORING 

2009/2010 

 

 

COMPLAINT No. RSN 4083 
 

 
DATE RECEIVED 

 
DATE 
ASSESSED 

 
ASSESSMENT OUTCOME 
 

 

 
26/11/09 
 

 
09/12/09 

 
No further action 
 

 

Comments: 
 
No request for review received 
 
 
 
 

COMPLAINT No. RSN 4354 
 

 
DATE 
RECEIVED 

 
DATE 
ASSESSED 

 
ASSESSMENT 
OUTCOME 

 
DATE REVIEW 
REQUESTED 

 
REVIEW HEARING 

 
REVIEW OUTCOME 
 
 

 
28/01/10 
 
 

 
10/02/10 
 

 
No further action 

 
08/03/10 

 
21/04/10 

 
No further action 

Comments: 
 
The complainant has no means of further appeal against this decision  
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 1 

7



STANDARDS COMMITTEE: COMPLAINT MONITORING 

2009/2010 

 
 
COMPLAINT No. 4529 (2 complaints on same issue) 
 
 
DATE RECEIVED 

 
DATE ASSESSED 

 
ASSESSMENT OUTCOME 

 
REVIEW REQUESTED 

 
07/04/10 
 
 

 
21/04/10 

 
No further action 

 

Comments: 
 
No review requested 
 
 
 
 
COMPLAINT No. 4533 
 
 
DATE RECEIVED 

 
DATE ASSESSED 

 
ASSESSMENT OUTCOME 

 
REVIEW REQUESTED 
 

 
14/04/10 
 
 

 
21/04/10 

 
No further action 

 

Comments: 
 
No review requested 
 
 
 

8



Planning and Environmental Protection Committee  
 

Voting Analysis – 12 January 2010 – 27 April 2010 
 
 
12 January 2010 
 

Item 

0
9
/0
0
9
9
6
/F
U
L
 –
 

C
o
m
p
a
s
s
 S
o
fa
, 
1
 

M
id
g
a
te
, 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

0
9
/0
1
2
0
2
/D
IS
C
H
G
 –
 

T
h
o
m
a
s
 W

a
lk
e
r 

M
e
d
ic
a
l 
C
e
n
tr
e
, 
8
7
-

8
9
 P
ri
n
c
e
s
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

Motion  With Officer 
Recommendations 

With Officer 
Recommendations 

Cllr North ü ü 

Cllr Kreling ü ü 

Cllr Lowndes ü ü 

Cllr Thacker ü ü 

Cllr Todd ü ü 

Cllr Winslade  ü ü 

Cllr C Day (sub) ü NV 

Cllr Ash ü ü 

Cllr Harrington ü NV 

Cllr Lane ü ü 

 
NP= Not Present, NV = did not vote. 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 2 

9



 
26 January 2010 
 

Item 

0
9
/0
1
1
8
6
/R
3
F
U
L
 –
 

W
e
s
tw
o
o
d
 G
ra
n
g
e
, 

M
a
y
o
rs
 W

a
lk
, 
W
e
s
t 

T
o
w
n
, 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
  

0
8
/0
1
4
7
1
/F
U
L
 –
 

W
e
rr
in
g
to
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
, 

S
ta
n
ila
n
d
 W

a
y
, 

W
e
rr
in
g
to
n
, 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

Motion  To defer item until 
further information 
available 

With Officer 
Recommendations 

Cllr North ü ü 

Cllr Kreling X ü 

Cllr Thacker ü ü 

Cllr Todd ü ü 

Cllr Winslade  X ü 

Cllr C Day (sub) ü ü 

Cllr Ash ü ü 

Cllr Harrington ü ü 

 
NP= Not Present, NV = did not vote. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
0



 
23 February 2010 
 

Item 

0
8
/0
1
6
3
2
/O
U
T
 –
 1
9
 

O
ld
 L
e
ic
e
s
te
r 
R
o
a
d
, 

W
a
n
s
fo
rd
, 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
  

0
9
/0
1
1
6
2
/F
U
L
 –
 1
3
 

S
t 
P
a
u
ls
 R
o
a
d
, 
N
e
w
 

E
n
g
la
n
d
, 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

0
9
/0
1
1
8
6
/R
3
F
U
L
 –
 

W
e
s
tw
o
o
d
 G
ra
n
g
e
, 

M
a
y
o
rs
 W

a
lk
, 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

0
9
/0
1
3
5
8
/F
U
L
 –
 

S
o
u
th
 V
ie
w
 R
o
a
d
 

a
n
d
 L
in
c
o
ln
 R
o
a
d
, 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

Motion  With Officer 
Recommendations 

With Officer 
Recommendations 

With Officer 
Recommendations 

With Officer 
Recommendations 

Cllr North ü ü ü ü 

Cllr Lowndes ü ü ü ü 

Cllr Kreling ü ü ü ü 

Cllr Thacker ü ü ü X 

Cllr Winslade  ü ü ü ü 

Cllr C Day (sub) ü ü ü NV 

Cllr Ash ü ü ü ü 

Cllr Lane ü ü ü NV 

Cllr Harrington ü ü ü NV 

 
NP= Not Present, NV = did not vote. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
1



23 March 2010 
 
Change to order of the agenda, item 5.4 was taken first. 
 

Item 

1
0
/0
0
1
3
3
/N
T
E
L
 –
 

G
ra
s
s
 V
e
rg
e
 

A
d
ja
c
e
n
t 
to
 

H
y
h
o
lm
e
s
, 
B
re
tt
o
n
, 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

0
9
/0
1
3
1
7
/F
U
L
 –
 

G
a
ra
g
e
s
 S
o
u
th
 o
f 

R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
n
d
, 

C
e
rr
is
 R
o
a
d
, 

D
o
g
s
th
o
rp
e
, 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

0
9
/0
1
3
8
4
/F
U
L
 –
 

L
a
n
d
 N
o
rt
h
 o
f 
M
a
tl
e
y
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 

O
rt
o
n
 B
ri
m
b
le
s
, 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

1
0
/0
0
0
9
9
/F
U
L
 –
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

G
a
rd
e
n
 P
a
rk
, 
E
y
e
, 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

Motion  Against Officer 
Recommendations 

With Officer 
Recommendations 

With Officer 
Recommendations 

With Officer 
Recommendations 

Cllr North NV ü ü ü 

Cllr Kreling ü ü ü ü 

Cllr Winslade  ü ü ü ü 

Cllr Todd ü ü ü ü 

Cllr C Day (sub) ü NP (Ward Cllr) ü ü 

Cllr Ash ü ü ü ü 

Cllr Lane ü NP ü ü 

Cllr Harrington ü ü ü ü 

 
NP= Not Present, NV = did not vote. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
2



 
27 April 2010 
 
 

Item 

1
0
/0
0
0
4
7
/F
U
L
 –
 1
0
5
 

O
x
n
e
y
 R
o
a
d
, 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

1
0
/0
0
1
2
9
/F
U
L
 –
 3
8
 

E
lm
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 

W
o
o
d
s
to
n
, 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

Motion  To defer item until 
further information 
available 

Against Officer 
Recommendations 

Cllr North ü NV 

Cllr Lowndes ü ü 

Cllr Thacker ü ü 

Cllr Kreling ü ü 

Cllr Winslade  ü ü 

Cllr Todd ü ü 

Cllr C Day (sub) X X 

Cllr Ash ü X 

Cllr Lane NV X 

Cllr Harrington X ü 

 
NP= Not Present, NV = did not vote. 
 
 
 

1
3



1
4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



APPENDIX J 

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL 

(DRAFT) ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2010 

 

1.  SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY 

 

Peterborough City Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the 

law and proper standards and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for and used 

economically, efficiently and effectively. The City Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 

1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are 

exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the City Council is responsible for putting in place proper 

arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, and which 

includes arrangements for the management of risk. 

 

This statement explains how the City Council endeavours to deliver good governance and reviews the 

effectiveness of these arrangements. It also meets the requirements of regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and 

Audit Regulations 2003, as amended by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006, 

which requires the City Council to publish a statement on internal control in accordance with proper 

practice. Proper practice has been defined as an Annual Governance Statement. 

 

 

2.  THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

 

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by which the City Council 

is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with, and leads the 

community. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider 

whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate and cost effective services. 

 

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a 

reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can 

therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal 

control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of 

the City Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of these risks being realised and 

the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

 

 

3.  THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

 

The Council is a complex organisation with an appropriately comprehensive governance framework. The 

Council works in a dynamic environment and keeps its processes under constant review. Our governance 

framework derives from six core principles identified in a 2004 publication entitled The Good Governance 

Standard for Public Services. This was produced by the Independent Commission on Good Governance in 

Public Services - a commission set up by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 

and the Office of Public Management. The commission utilised work done by, amongst others, Cadbury 

(2002), Nolan (1995) and CIPFA / SOLACE (2001). These principles were adapted for application to local 

authorities and published by CIPFA in 2007. The six core principles state that good governance means: 

 

• Focusing on the purpose of the Authority and on outcomes for the community including citizens and 

service users and creating and implementing a vision for the local area; 

• Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions 

and roles; 

APPENDIX 3 

15



APPENDIX J 

• Promoting the values of the Authority and demonstrating the values of good governance through 

behaviour; 

• Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing risk; 

• Developing the capacity and capability of members to be effective and ensuring that officers (including 

the statutory officers) also have the capability and capacity to deliver effectively; and 

• Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust local public accountability.  

 

In March 2008, the City Council approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance, which 

provided in-depth details of the framework the City Council has in place to meet the six core principles of 

effective governance, as prescribed by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) / 

Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) guidance “Delivering Good Governance in Local 

Government”. The following paragraphs summarise the City Council’s Governance Framework which has 

been in place for the year ended 31
st

 March 2010 and up to the date of approval of this Statement and the 

Statement of Accounts. 

 

The key elements of each of these core principles are as follows:  

 

3.1: Creating and Implementing a Vision  

 

Good governance means focusing on the purpose of the City Council, on outcomes for the community and 

creating and implementing a vision for the local area. The following describe how the City Council achieves 

this: 

 

• The Council has a clear statement of its purpose and vision as set out in the Corporate Plan which is 

published on an annual basis. The Corporate Plan sets out the overarching strategy for the Council 

including its priorities and the outcomes that it is seeking to achieve. The Plan provides a clear basis for 

corporate and service planning which is carried out in accordance with the Corporate Planning Cycle. 

The Council Plan has clear links to the Sustainable Community Strategy and Local Area Agreement.  

 

• The Sustainable Community Strategy for Peterborough was agreed by the Greater Peterborough 

Partnership in 2005 and fully refreshed to set out vision for Peterborough covering 2008 - 2021. It sets 

out a vision and overall strategy for the future of the city and the surrounding villages and rural areas. 

It reflects both the agenda for growth and the clear desire to ensure that Peterborough grows the right 

way, so that economic and population growth leads to genuine improvements in key areas, 

particularly those where Peterborough currently has specific problems or issues. It recognises that in 

order to create a bigger and better Peterborough, then the city will have to deal quickly and effectively 

with the pressing issues of today as well as the plans for tomorrow. 

 

•  The SCS vision is to create: 

• A bigger and better Peterborough that grows the right way, and through truly sustainable 

development and growth; 

• Improves the quality of life of all its people and communities, and ensure that all communities 

benefit from growth and the opportunities it brings; 

• Creates a truly sustainable Peterborough, the urban centre of a thriving sub-regional 

community of villages and market towns, a healthy, safe and exciting place to live, work and 

visit, famous as the environment capital of the UK. 

 

• There are four priorities for areas of work which are needed in order to achieve the vision and each of 

these is supported by four high level outcomes that form the basis of the Local Area Agreement. The 

four priorities are: 

• Creating Opportunities - Tackling Inequalities 

• Creating Strong and Supportive Communities 

• Creating the UK's Environment Capital 

16



APPENDIX J 

• Delivering Substantial and Truly Sustainable Growth 

 

• Led by the City Council, the Sustainable Community Strategy is a shared view across partners and the 

community about what needs to be done to improve the economic, social and environmental 

wellbeing of the local area. Partner organisations are expected to take account of the Sustainable 

Community Strategy when they prepare their own organisation’s business plan. 

 

• The Vision is reviewed through a variety of means including ongoing analysis of performance 

information; a review of national and local drivers for change; consultation with stakeholders, 

including residents, businesses and partner organisations. This is structured around the Corporate 

Planning Cycle, so that any changes made are cascading through the organisation to inform and amend 

departmental delivery contracts, service plans and business plans. 

 

• The annually updated Corporate Plan contains a statement of objectives within each corporate 

priority. This describes the areas where we are focussing our activities over a three year period. This 

document also records information about the Council's services and finances, and lists targets for the 

next three years together with planned improvements. Performance is reported to Cabinet on a 

quarterly basis and is monitored through various Scrutiny Committees. Performance information is 

available across the council and partnership through the council’s corporate performance 

management system, Performance Plus, which is used to report against National Indicators to senior 

management. 

 

• The Council has a medium term financial plan (MTFP) and capital programme to ensure that resources 

are aligned to priorities. The budget process incorporate consideration of the allocation of resources to 

the Corporate Plan aims. The MTFP allows annual strategic review in the context of performance 

against Corporate Plan aims and sets targets of efficiency improvement to release resources for 

deployment. Monitoring reports are submitted to the Corporate Management Team, (CMT) and to 

Cabinet and issues are referred to other Scrutiny Commissions as appropriate. The council established 

"critical issues" which are reported regularly through the CMT. These reports use a traffic light system 

to make interpreting results easier. This provides a focus on key areas which may require more 

attention or resource in order for the Council to achieve its objectives.  

 

• Value for money is embedded in the Council's culture, and underpins the strategic priorities. Through 

reviews by External Audit, external agencies, Internal Audit, and internal review teams, the Council 

constantly seeks ways of ensuring the economical, effective and efficient use of resources, and for 

securing continuous improvement in the way in which functions are exercised. The council has an 

ambitious business transformation programme to take the council forward. Rated "3" under the 

Comprehensive Area Assessment, the city council performance has improved over recent years.  

 

• There are two work streams for the transformation programme.  

• Focus on procurement - aiming to deliver ongoing annualised savings. A range of corporately 

negotiated contracts mean that purchasing across the organisation is consistent and offers 

best value for money for the council as a whole. These achievements have resulted in the 

Council being nominated for, and also winning a number of national awards. 

• Driving efficiency – with the successes of the procurement strand providing funding for the 

efficiency agenda. The efficiency focus is on the use of ICT to simplify processes; reducing the 

cost of business support; and rationalising current ICT-related supplies and service contracts. 

The organisation will become smaller and there will be a number of restructures to equip the 

council for its future activity. During the year the council entered into an ICT Managed Service 

contract with Serco. Other councils are visiting Peterborough to learn about some of the best 

practice generated within the "Manor Drive Initiative" on back office service provision. 

 

17



APPENDIX J 

• Regular revisions are made to the Constitution to ensure continuing improvement and simplification, 

whilst maintain appropriate governance checks. The Council continues to develop and refine systems 

for identifying and evaluating all significant risks, via CMT. Council approved a Risk Management 

Strategy in October 2004 and this has been annually refreshed through the Audit Committee. Changes 

to the overall risk profile of the council are reported through to members on the Audit Committee on a 

periodic basis. 

 

• When the Council works in partnerships, it has a methodology which ensures that there is a common 

vision underpinning the work of the partnership that is understood and agreed by all partners. The 

Council works in many different partnerships, ranging from the strategic to the operational. The 

overarching vision for partnership working is set out in the Sustainable Community Strategy supported 

by the Local Area Agreement which articulates it.  

 

• The Council has a comprehensive comments, compliments and complaints scheme. This is used to 

identify areas where service quality is not satisfactory and to take action to improve. As an 

organisation, the Council is committed to meeting the service needs of a very diverse community, and 

looks to meet the "Equality Framework for Local Government".  

 

3.2: Roles and Responsibilities of Members and Officers  

 

Good governance means members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with 

clearly defined functions and roles. The Council aims to ensure that the roles and responsibilities for 

governance are defined and allocated so that accountability for decisions made and actions are clear. 

 

• The Council is governed by a constitution which sets out the main control mechanisms. The Council 

appoints a Cabinet. Made up of the Leader, Deputy Leader and 7 other members, who are responsible 

for proposing budgets and policies and taking key decisions in relation to their various portfolios. In 

addition, the Cabinet have appointed 3 other members to act as Cabinet Advisors on strategic portfolio 

activities. The manner in which Cabinet business is transacted is governed by written procedures and 

principles contained in the Executive Decisions within and outside the Policy Framework within the 

Constitution. Individual Cabinet members receive regular feedback from the senior officers within their 

portfolios on the progress of objectives. Issues of strategic and corporate importance are referred to 

Cabinet. 

 

• The Council has 6 Scrutiny Committees which can hold the Cabinet to account by reviewing decisions, 

undertaking reviews of the Council’s functions, and consider any relevant matters affecting the city or 

its residents. Although they have no decision making powers, the Commissions/Committees are able 

to "Call In" and review certain decisions of Cabinet. Until the call-in process is completed the decision 

cannot be implemented. These non-executive members also serve on 8 Regulatory Committees which 

consider a variety of non-executive functions. 

 

• All Committees have clear terms of reference and work programmes to set out their roles and 

responsibilities. An Audit Committee provides assurance to the Council on the effectiveness of the 

governance arrangements, risk management framework and internal control environment. The 

Council’s Constitution contains a Code of Conduct for Councillors, protocols advising on the Code of 

Conduct of Officers and a specific protocol on Member / Officer Relations.  

 

• Information bulletins are circulated to councillors on current local government issues and publications 

and regular briefings are provided on their role. Notices of all key decisions to be taken are published 

in the Council’s Forward Plan in which the community is advised firstly that the decision is to be taken 

and secondly to whom representations can be made. In this was the public interest in major decisions 

to be taken by the Council is stimulated. Agendas, reports and published decisions are available to 

councillors and the general public via the Council’s web pages. 

18



APPENDIX J 

 

• The Council ensures that effective management arrangements are in place at the top of the 

organisation. The Councils Chief Executive (and Head of Paid Service) leads the Council's officers and 

Chairs the Corporate Management Team. 

 

• The Executive Director (Strategic Resources) as the s.151 Officer appointed under the 1972 Local 

Government Act carries overall responsibility for the financial administration of the City Council. The 

Executive Director is also responsible for ensuring that there is an adequate and effective system of 

internal audit of the Council's accounting records and of its systems of internal control. 

 

• The Solicitor to the Council, as Monitoring Officer, carries overall responsibility for legal compliance 

and the maintenance of high standards of conduct by providing advice and support to Members and 

Officers. 

 

• Regular CMT meetings are held. In addition, Executive Directors meet their respective Cabinet 

Members on a regular basis. A Heads of Service Forum supports the work of CMT on a number of 

issues. In addition, there are a series of officer working groups who meet to deal with a range of 

specific service as well as cross cutting issues. 

 

• All staff, including senior management, have clear conditions of employment and job descriptions 

which set out their roles and responsibilities. Terms and conditions of employment are in line with the 

harmonisation agreement implemented in 2008. The terms and conditions of members are clearly set 

out in the Members’ Allowances Scheme within the Council’s Constitution. The Scheme covers basic 

and special responsibility allowances, and pensions. The Scheme is approved by the Council following 

preparation and review by an independent Panel.  

 

• The council maintains an objective and professional relationship with external auditors and statutory 

inspectors, as evidenced by the Annual Audit Letter. 

 

3.3: Standards of Conduct and Behaviour  

 

Good governance means promoting appropriate values for the Council and demonstrating the values of 

good governance by upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour. The following describes how the 

Council achieves this: 

 

• The Solicitor to the Council, after consultation with the Chief Executive and Executive Director 

(Resources) can report to Full Council if she considers that any proposal, decision or omission would 

give rise to unlawfulness or maladministration. Such a report will have the effect of stopping the 

proposal or decision being implemented until the report has been considered. 

 

• The Council has developed and adopted a number of codes and protocols that govern both Member 

and officer activities defining the standards of behaviour such as:  

• Members Code of Conduct 

• Officers’ Code of Conduct 

• Member / Officer Protocol 

• Planning Code of Conduct  

• Member declarations of interest 

• Gifts and hospitality 

• Grievance procedures 

 

• The Council takes fraud, corruption and maladministration very seriously and has the following policies 

which aim to prevent or deal with such occurrences:  

• Anti Fraud and Corruption Policy and Fraud Response Plan 

19



APPENDIX J 

• Confidential Reporting Code (Whistleblowing Policy); 

• Human Resources policies regarding disciplinary of staff involved in such incidents. 

 

• Member and Officer behaviour is governed by separate Codes of Conduct. These include a 

requirement for declarations of interest to be completed. Conduct of Members is monitored by a 

Standards Committee, independently chaired, which also investigates allegations of misconduct of 

Members. The Standards Committee has a defined work programme which it reviews at each meeting 

which includes planned reviews of relevant codes and protocols within the Constitution. 

 

• The Corporate Complaints procedures enables the Council to receive and investigate any complaint 

made against it, a Member or a member of staff. 

 

• Many services across the organisation abide by, or have achieved various accredited status of 

excellence, as well as being shortlisted for and winning a number of national awards. These include: 

 

• The Council has maintained Investors in People accreditation throughout the organisation on 

an individual departmental basis. A full Council accreditation is planned for September 2010. 

• Legal Services has achieved Lexcel accreditation, which is the Law Society's practice 

management standard, only awarded to solicitors who meet the highest management and 

customer care standards. 

• Customer Service excellence award has been retained by Strategic Resources and is due for 

reaccreditation in July 2010 within Planning Services. 

• Strategic Resources achieved a number of successes with the LGS Awards, Government 

Business Awards, and Municipal Journal Awards. It was the LGC Finance Winner for Efficiency 

2009 for Manor Drive and Customer Services and shortlisted for the LGC Main Award for 

Efficiency and Transformational Government in March 2010. From the Government Business 

Awards in March 2010 it was winners for Procurement and Waste, and shortlisted for Finance. 

Finally, it has been nominated through MJ for Waste 2010. 

 

• The Council's financial management is conducted in accordance with the financial rules set out in the 

Constitution, the Budget Framework, Financial Regulations, Contract Regulations and Procurement 

Strategy. These rules set out the framework within which the Council conducts its financial affairs and 

ensures proper financial arrangements are in place. 

 

• Full Council approves a balanced budget before the start of each financial year. This includes a 

Medium Term Financial Strategy, annual reviewed, under which it plans its finances, target efficiency 

savings required and potential council tax implications over a three year rolling period. During the 

year, budget monitoring reports are taken to Management Teams and Members on a regular basis. 

 

• In 2009 / 2010, the Council identified savings totally £6.2m in order to deliver a balanced budget that 

provided for investment in key customer outcomes and a target for 2010 / 2011 of £6.4m. 

 

3.4: Decision Making, Scrutiny and Risk  

 

Good governance means taking informed and transparent decisions that are effectively scrutinised and 

managing risk. The following describes how the Council achieves this: 

 

• The Leader and Cabinet are responsible for all Executive Decisions. Operational matters requiring 

decision are delegated to Council Officers under the Scheme of Delegations. 

 

• Forthcoming key decisions by Cabinet (including decisions by individual Cabinet Members), are 

published in the Cabinet's Forward Plan in so far as they can be anticipated. This is reviewed at each 

Cabinet Meeting. 

20



APPENDIX J 

 

• The Cabinet has power to make decisions that are in accordance with the Council's policy framework 

and approved budget. Decisions that fall outside the policy framework or approved budget must be 

referred to the Full Council. 

 

• The Council has several committees which carry out regulatory or scrutiny functions which encourages 

constructive challenge and enhances the Authority’s performance overall. Scrutiny Committees have 

power to review the decisions of Cabinet and Cabinet Members, through the "call-in" process, to 

determine whether decisions have followed the agreed process and are in accordance with the 

Council's policy framework and approved budget.  

 

• The Council's Internal Audit service complies with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (amended 

2006) and operates in accordance with the "CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 

Government in UK 2006". Responsibility for Internal Audit rests with the Chief Internal Auditor. 

Reporting lines are within the Strategic Resources Directorate, with reporting lines to the Head of 

Corporate Services, Executive Director (Strategic Resources) as well as access to the Chief Executive, 

Monitoring Officer and members as required. 

 

• The Internal Audit division plans and priorities its work around risk based auditing approach and seeks 

to programme in work based on risk, strength of control and materiality. Internal Audit makes 

recommendations for improving the internal control environment and part of their work includes 

monitoring agreed action plans. This ensures compliance with established policies and procedures, 

particularly financial and contract procedures. Reports, including an assessment of the adequacy of 

control and action plans to address weaknesses, are submitted to Members (through the Audit 

Committee), the Chief Executive, Executive Directors and management as appropriate. 

 

• The Council maintains both Strategic and Operational Risk Registers. During 2009 / 2010, the Council 

undertook a fundamental review of its risk management approach, culminating in a revised strategy in 

September 2009. 

 

3.5: Developing Capacity and Capability of Members and Officers 

 

Good governance means developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective. 

The following describes how the Council achieves this: 

 

• The Councils structure gives clear accountability for the performance management of services, both 

within departments and corporately. 

 

• The Council aims to ensure that Members and managers of the Council have the skills, knowledge and 

capacity they need to discharge their responsibilities and recognises value of well trained and 

competent people in effective service delivery. In developing Members’ skills, the Council has an 

overall development strategy in place. The Chair and Vice Chair of Standards Committee and the 

Deputy Monitoring Officers attend the annual Standards Conference. 

 

• Members of the Audit Committee are provided with training specific to its responsibilities before every 

Committee meeting. The focus is on key governance issues such as risk management and internal 

control, together with scrutiny arrangements for the accounts. Individual briefings are enhanced by 

the Audit Committee Handbook. 

 

• The council also provides induction programmes tailored to individual needs and opportunities for 

members and officers to update their knowledge on a regular basis. All new and transferring 

employees will receive an effective induction tailored to their needs, although there are key messages 

given to all: such as freedom of information and data security, procurement and financial regulations. 

21



APPENDIX J 

 

• Senior Managers have been through the Vision 2010: Building Managers for the Future programme, 

the purpose being to provide the necessary tools to support managers in delivering improved services 

linked explicitly to business outcomes and to enable them to display the expected leadership 

behaviours. Further acknowledgement of the Council's commitment to ensuring that staff are 

equipped with the appropriate skills and capabilities to perform comes in the form of the Investors in 

People accreditation. 
 

• All officers have comprehensive job descriptions and person specifications. The Council has a 

comprehensive process in place to review performance for all staff. The scheme was recognised as 

needing review and a new system of Performance Development Review has been introduced. Where 

capability issues are identified, appropriate processes are in place to try to resolve these. 

 

3.6: Engaging with Local People and Stakeholders 

 

Good governance means engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public 

accountability. The following describes how the Council achieves this: 

 

• The Council's planning and decision making processes are designed to include consultation with 

stakeholders and the submission of views of local people. 

 

• Every year, together with our partners, we carry out many consultation exercises. The Council has in 

place arrangements to enable it engage with all sections of the community effectively. These 

arrangements recognise that different sections of the community have different priorities and 

establish explicit processes for dealing with these competing demands. These have included Citizens 

Panel; Focus groups (face to face and on-line) - with, for example, refugees and asylum seekers, 

disabled people, young people, older people; Employee forums / Joint consultative forum; Voluntary 

and community sector network; One-off consultation events; and Public meetings. 

 

• All consultation is carried out for purpose and is not generic so that it deals with specific issues. The 

Council recognises that different sections of the community have different priorities and is able to 

analyse consultation results on this basis. Varied channels of communication are used to reach all 

sections of the community and other stakeholders. Communication channels include: newspapers, 

MORI Surveys, press releases, internet, public question time at committee meetings, public speaking 

on planning applications, open forums, member surgeries etc. 

 

• Our commitment to partnership working is demonstrated in our approach to community leadership. 

To give local citizens a greater say in local decision making, the Council established 7 Neighbourhood 

Councils to cover the city and its surrounds. Neighbourhood Councils are open public meetings that 

are held at a local venue every two or three months. The meetings are an opportunity for residents to 

find out what is happening in their area and to discuss the big issues and priorities. Residents meet 

with local ward Members and representatives from the Police, Health and Council. The 

Neighbourhood Councils are local leadership groups which agree priorities, decide where community 

grants are to be spent where available, monitor performance and decide upon the vision for the 

neighbourhood. In addition to neighbourhood councils, ongoing work in the community is also 

facilitated through the Parish Council Liaison Committee. 

 

• On an annual basis publishes the Corporate Plan giving information on the authority’s vision, strategy, 

plans and financial statements as well as information about its outcomes, achievements and the 

satisfaction of service users in the previous period. The forward looking section of the plan which sets 

out the authority’s vision, strategy and plans, and medium term financial plans for the coming period is 

published in March / April each year. The backward looking section of the plan outlining information 

on outcomes, achievements, financial outturn and Performance Indicators, including satisfaction of 

22



APPENDIX J 

service users, is published by 30 June annually. A summary of this information is published as an 

annual report for public consumption. 

 

• When working in partnership the Council ensures that engagement and consultation undertaken by 

the partnership is planned with regard to methodology, target audience and required outcomes. 

Existing mechanisms and groups are used where appropriate.  

 

• The Council has identified a number of significant partnerships. These are: 

 

• Peterborough PCT - an integrated NHS body delivering integrated health and adult social care 

services. A Section 31 Partnership Agreement between the Council and the PCT delegates 

delivery of adult social care services to the Trust. The partnership is governed by an Annual 

Agreement that details performance and financial matters. The Care Trust produces its own 

internal assurances about the effectiveness of its internal control environment that are 

monitored by the Executive Management Team, the Audit Committee (chaired by a Non 

Executive Director) and the full Board. 

• The Children and Young Peoples Trust - a partnership between the Council and the 

organisations that have a duty to cooperate under the Children's Act 2004 to deliver integrated 

and coordinated services to children, young people and their families. 

• Building Schools for the Future programme - a national programme, bringing together 

investment in new school buildings, leading edge ICT, and significant educational reform. 

• Peterborough Culture and Leisure Trust - partnership set up to secure new and improved 

facilities. Following agreement in Spring 2010, this is due to commence from May 2010. 

• Opportunity Peterborough - a partnership between the Council, the East of England 

Development Agency (EEDA), Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) and the Government’s 

Department for Communities and Local Government to drive the sustainable growth of the 

city. It is also working alongside other partner organisations such as Greater Peterborough 

Partnership to deliver the city’s community strategy and meet Peterborough’s objective of 

becoming the nation’s ‘environment capital’. 

 

23



APPENDIX J 

 

4.  REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS 

 

The Council annual reviews the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal 

control. The review of effectiveness is informed by managers within the Council who have responsibility for 

the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the work of the internal auditors, and 

also by comments made by the external auditors and other inspection agencies. 

 

Both in year and year end review processes have taken place. In year review mechanisms include: 

 

• The Cabinet is responsible for considering overall financial and performance management and receives 

comprehensive reports on a quarterly basis. It is also responsible for key decisions and for initiating 

corrective action in relation to risk and internal control issues. 

 

• There is a well resourced scrutiny function which holds the Cabinet to account, which include an 

overview of service and financial performance, efficiency and effectiveness. 

 

• The Standards Committee has met regularly throughout the year to consider and review issues relating 

to the conduct of Members. Service standards have been agreed with the Monitoring Officer and a 

report on the number and progress of complaints against members is received at each meeting. It has 

developed, and continually monitors, its own work programme and reports annually to Council on its 

previous year's performance. The Monitoring Officer has consistently met the statutory reporting 

requirement to Standards for England. 

 

• The Audit Committee met throughout the year to provide independent assurance to the Council in 

relation to the effectiveness of the risk management framework, internal control environment and the 

annual statement of accounts. Annually, the Internal and External Audit Plans are approved through 

the committee. The Committee met 7 times during the year receiving regular reports and training on 

governance, risk and internal control matters. 

 

• Internal Audit is an independent and objective assurance service to the management of the Council 

who complete a programme of reviews throughout the year to provide an opinion of the internal 

control, risk management and governance arrangements. Internal Audit has unrestricted access to all 

Council records and property, and the organisational independence to form an objective opinion on 

the adequacy and effectiveness on the whole system of internal control. The work of Internal Audit is 

planned using risk assessments, assurance from other inspectorates, and discussions with Directors 

and Heads of Service; and annual plans are formulated and approved by Audit Committee. The work 

includes not only reviews of financial control, but also of risk management, control over the 

achievement of organisational policies and objectives, and compliance with laws and regulations. The 

outcome of all audit reviews are reported to the appropriate Director, and matters of concern are 

raised with the Chief Executive, Executive Director (Resources), Leader of the Council and the Chair of 

Audit Committee. 

 

• The Corporate Fraud section undertakes fraud investigations and detection work. 

 

• Risk management is handled through a range of mechanisms. Risk owners are in place for all corporate 

risks. The risks cascade down to the services, who manage the risks via the service planning process 

and regular review. Corporate risks are revisited through CMT. Risks are accounted for in all project 

planning, the creation of the Medium Term Financial Strategy and other Council operations as an 

inherent part of normal procedure. 

 

24



APPENDIX J 

• Work undertaken as part of the Strategic Governance Board. Made up of senior officers from across 

the Council and members, including the Chair of Standards Committee, the Board has been established 

to consider, review and coordinate improvements in all aspects of the governance framework. 

 

• The actions arising from the significant control issues detailed in last years Annual Governance 

Statement have been monitored throughout the year and reported through to Audit Committee. 

 

• Assurance from the Audit Commission, other Inspection Agencies and External Audit. On completion of 

their work, a Joint Audit and Inspection Letter is issued to the Council. The last Joint Audit Letter was 

issued March 2010 for the financial year 2008 / 2009, and was discussed and endorsed at meetings of 

the Cabinet and Audit Committee on 8 February 2010. The main conclusions from the Letter are: 

 

• An unqualified audit opinion on the financial statements; 

• Deadlines for the production and publishing of final accounts by 30 September 2009 were met; 

• An overall underspend of £141,000 was achieved and transferred to reserves; 

• An assessment of the Council as "performing well" in terms of Managing Finances and 

Governing the Business; "performing adequately" for Managing Resources and Managing 

Performance. The overall Organisational Assessment for the Council is "performing 

adequately"; 

• Significant challenges for future years include the impact of the global economic downturn on 

future grant settlements; the Peterborough Delivery Partnership; improving performance and 

the adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards. 

 

The year end review of the governance arrangements and the control environment included: 

 

• The Chief Internal Auditors' annual opinion on the status of the Council in terms of the governance and 

overall controls. For this year he has provided an unqualified opinion. 

 

• Assurance from Executive Directors and their management teams on the key elements of the control 

framework were in place in their departments. A separate annual evaluation questionnaire is 

circulated to each department and completed through their departmental teams, allowing for overall 

ownership within the groups.  They were also asked to identify areas where control weaknesses had 

resulted in significant issues arising. The statement itself has been circulated to all Directors for 

consideration and is supported by them as an accurate reflection on the governance arrangements in 

place for the year.  

 

• Assurance from Members. A separate questionnaire was issued to all members to seek their views on 

the governance arrangements in place to support and develop them and to provide suggestions on 

how any shortfalls or gaps could be addressed.   

 

 

5.  SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

 

The review process has highlighted a number of new significant issues of the effectiveness of the 

governance and internal control environment. Additionally, there are a number of issues which were 

highlighted in last years Annual Governance Statement which have not progressed sufficiently to be fully 

excluded from this years statement. For each issue, detailed action plans have been determined, a 

responsible officer identified and a summary of the key elements are included in the table below. 

Conversely, there are a number of items which were included in 2008 / 2009 which have been excluded as 

significant progress has been made in addressing the issues such that they are no longer considered a 

threat to the control environment. These items are: 

 

• Credit Crunch - lower income; increase in service requirements; impact on capital disposal. 

25



APPENDIX J 

• In response to the ongoing economic conditions, considerable work has been targeted at the 

impact the recession has had on the citizens of Peterborough, individual businesses and the 

Council as a whole. 

• Regular monitoring is in place on the Council Tax / NNDR debt levels together with the number 

of benefit claimants. 

• A number of factors were built into the Medium Term Financial Strategy in order to deliver a 

balanced budget while maintaining services. 

• The capital programme has been reappraised and capital disposals have been optimised. 

 

• Collapse of Icelandic Banks and loss of investment 

• Following the Icelandic banking crisis, the Council fully scrutinised its position. The Treasury 

Management Policy was updated and member reporting has been enhanced. 

• A number of payments have been received during the year and have been reported. Further 

improvements will be made in 2010 with Treasury Management being included in the work 

programme of the Audit Committee. 

 

• Single status agreement 

• Independent reviews have established that an equitable scheme has been adopted and 

ongoing appeals have been instigated, heard and changes made where appropriate. 

 

• Effective governance 

• Regular reviews are in place of the internal structures and the democratic decision making 

processes. The creation of the Strategic Governance Board has provided a focal point to 

channel change and evaluate the effectiveness of the governance framework in place. 

 

• External Audit / Internal Audit recommendations 

• Challenge and scrutiny is in place via the Audit Committee and officers have on occasion been 

called to account where service / performance levels have dropped below expected standards 

and / or recommendations have not been implemented. This deterrent has increased the 

profile and standing of both Internal and External Audit works within the Council. 

 

• Audit Letter March 2009 - service performance improvement in Revenues and Benefits 

• Monthly performance reports are produced and monitored to cover service delivery and 

collection rates. A series of changes have been made to integrate the service within the Shared 

Transactional Services division within the Manor Drive Initiative. 

 

• Risk Management 

• Risk management has been integrated within the Resilience and CCTV Team, to provide a more 

coordinated delivery. This has been further enhanced by combining the risk management and 

business continuity strategies. Risks are embedded into project management processes and 

the financial planning environment.  

 

26



APPENDIX J 

ONGOING GOVERNANCE ISSUES IDENTIFIED IN 2008 / 2009 

ISSUE AREA FOR IMPROVEMENT PROGRESS / LEAD OFFICER 

Sickness absence With reductions in the workforce, there is the potential for 

additional pressures on remaining staff to deliver services. If not 

carefully managed, there could be an increase in sickness levels. 

The Council has developed revised procedures to tackle sickness 

throughout the organisation. To monitor enhancements in 

procedures covering sickness absence to assess the effectiveness 

of such changes. 

 

Monthly reports to Corporate and Departmental Management 

Teams. Ongoing use of Occupational Health to coordinate return to 

works etc. for officers who have been off for longer periods of time. 

 

While there are robust systems in place for managers to follow to 

monitor, act on and report absences, Internal Audit will undertake a 

full review of absence management arrangements as part of 

2010/11 audit plans. 

 

Lead: Head of Human Resources 

 

Effective recruitment 

checks 

To further enhance procedures covering the area of recruitment to 

ensure that all appropriate pre-employment checks are completed 

prior to employees commencing work 

 

Quarterly reports are produced and circulated to all departments. 

Recent changes have been made to various legislation which 

impacts on recruitment, for example, UK Border Agency Regulations 

and the Asylum & Immigration Act. Internal Audit will undertake a 

compliance review to ensure robust processes have been 

implemented.  

 

Lead: Head of Human Resources   

 

Shared services The council is embarking on a programme of shared services and 

other delivery options which are expected to generate financial 

savings and other benefits. A controlled programme has been 

developed which will monitor the implementation and delivery of 

services through these arrangements.  

 

ICT Managed Service was established October 2009 with Serco. The 

Manor Drive Initiative established and being developed further 

together with investigating DEECATS. 

 

There are ongoing developments of partnership arrangements for 

the Leisure Trust which will be created in May 2010. Effective 

governance arrangements will be regularly monitored. 

 

Lead: Executive Director (Resources) 

 

 

2
7



APPENDIX J 

 

NEW GOVERNANCE ISSUES 2009 / 2010 

ISSUE SOURCE AREA FOR IMPROVEMENT 

Grant Claims Annual Audit Letter: 

January 2010 

The council should review the reasons for qualifications in its grant claims, and take steps to ensure relevant 

matters are addressed in future years. 

 

Lead: Head of Corporate Services 

 

Neighbourhood Councils Annual Audit Letter: 

January 2010 

Further engagement with local communities is required with regard to determining strategic priorities and 

financial planning 

 

Lead: Head of Neighbourhood Services 

 

Data Quality Annual Audit Letter: 

January 2010 

The Strategic Improvement Division should ensure that key data and performance information is reviewed and 

that action is taken to address weaknesses 

 

Lead: Head of Strategic Improvement and Partnerships 

 

Managing Resources Annual Audit Letter: 

January 2010 

The Council needs to achieve clear reductions in its main resource use areas when measured using the same 

basis for calculation year-on-year 

 

Lead: Head of Corporate Services 

 

2
8



APPENDIX J 

 

6.  CERTIFICATION 

 

As Leader and Chief Executive, we have been advised on the implications of the results of the review of 

effectiveness of the Council's governance framework, by the Audit Committee and Cabinet. 

 

Our overall assessment is that the Annual Governance Statement is a balance reflection of the governance 

environment and that an adequate framework exists within Peterborough City Council to ensure effective 

internal control is maintained. We are also satisfied that there are appropriate plans in place to address any 

significant governance issues and will monitor their implementation and operations as part of our next 

annual review. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Leader of the Council 

 

 

 

Marco Cereste 

 

 

 

______________________ 

 

 

 

Date 

 

 

 

______________ 

 

 

 

Chief Executive 

 

 

 

Gillian Beasley 

 

 

 

______________________ 

 

 

 

Date 

 

 

 

______________ 

 

29



30

This page is intentionally left blank



Reference: An2010-10778  

 

 

 

 

Annual Return form - 2010  

Authority name Peterborough City Council 
Primary contact Helen Edwards 
Primary contact 
email

helen.edwards@peterborough.gov.uk 

 

PART 1: COMMUNICATION  

Annual Report  

 Does the standards committee produce an annual report?
Yes 
 

 What does the report contain?

 

A personal statement by the standards committee 
chairman

Information about the members of the standards 
committee

The role of the standards committee The standards committee terms of reference

Information about the Code of Conduct Statistical information about complaints that have been 
received

Information about the length of time taken dealing with 
complaints

A summary of complaints which have led to investigation, 
sanction or other action

Details about training/events provided The forward work plan of the standards committee

Other 

 

 How is the standards committee annual report circulated? 

 

Sent to all senior officers Sent to all members

Sent to parish/town councils Available on the authority intranet

Available as a specific item on the authority website Available in the standards committee papers published on 
the authority website

Included as a full authority meeting agenda item Publicised in local press

Distributed to households Available at authority offices

Not circulated outside of the standards committee Other

 

 

The report is "Available in the standards committee papers published on the 
authority website", please provide the web address.
www.peterborough.gov.uk 

 
Publicising Complaints  

 

How can the public access information about how to make a complaint against a 
member? 

 

Through a ‘compliments and complaints’ type section of the 
council website

Through the standards committee section of the website

Complaints leaflets available from the authority Included as part of a council newsletter

Advertised through parish councils Information is not available to the public

Other

 

 

The information is on "standards committee section of the website", please 
provide the web address.
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?
NAME=SD275&ID=275&RPID=119714&sch=doc&cat=13036&path=12871,13036 

 
31



  

 

How can the public access information about the outcome of initial assessment 
decisions? 

 

Written summary available for public inspection All initial assessment decisions are publicised in the local 
press

Publicised in the local press only if the subject member 
agrees 

Assessment decisions published on the authority website

Articles published in the authority newsletter Other 

 

 How can the public access information about the outcome of investigations?

 

Hearings are open to the public All investigation outcomes are publicised in the local press

Publicised in the local press only if the subject member 
agrees

Published on the authority website

Decision notices are available for public inspection Articles in the authority newsletter

Other 

 

 

Do you have a mechanism in place for measuring the satisfaction of all those involved 
in allegations of misconduct? For example the member, complainant and witnesses.
No 
 
Communicating the role and work of the standards committee and standards generally  

 

What does the authority do to promote the work of the standards committee and 
standards generally to the rest of the authority (i.e. internally)? 

 

Dedicated standards committee pages on intranet Standards committee has its own newsletter / bulletin

Standards committee issues briefing notes Articles in employee newsletter / bulletin / newspaper

Standards committee independent members observe other 
authority meetings

Standards committee independent members contribute to 
other authority meetings

Other 

 

 

Please give further details of the contributions made to other authority 
meetings.
Standards Committee members have an open invite to attend full Council 
meetings. This year the independent members also attended all of the 
Neighbourhood Coucnil meetings to do a presentation. The Independent Chair is 
also a member of the Strategic Governance Board and reports on the work of the 
Standards Committee.  

 

 How can the public access information about your standards committee? 

 

Dedicated standards committee section on the authority 
website

Within ‘council and democracy’ type section of website

Ethical standards issues have been included in the local 
press / media

Standards committee minutes, agendas, and reports are 
available to the public

Leaflets and/or posters are placed in public buildings Places articles in the authority newsletter / bulletin / other 
publication

Standards committee meetings are observed by members 
of the public

Information is not available to the public

Other 

 

 

Please provide the web address for the standards committee section on the 
authority website.
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=288 

 

 

What else does the authority do to promote the work of the standards committee 
and standards generally to the public and other partners?
The Neighbourhood Councils each received a presentation on the work of the Standards 
Committee which was well attended by members of the public. Leaflets were made 
available detailing the main points of the ethical regime. An invitation has been issued 
by the Parish Coucnil Liaison Committee to also receive the same presentation. The 
Standards Commmittee also intends to take part in Local Democracy Week which is a 
youth event to increase awareness of what the Council does. 

32



  

PART 2: INFLUENCE  

 

How does the standards committee communicate ethical issues to the senior figures 
within your authority (for example the Chief Executive and Leader of the Authority, 
Party Leaders)? 

 

Formal meetings between standards committee members 
and senior figures specifically set up to discuss standards

Informal discussion on particular standards issues

Senior figure attendance at standards committee meetings Monitoring Officer is a member of or attends Corporate 
Management Team (or equivalent) meetings

Executive or senior member has portfolio responsibility for 
standards

Chair (or other standards committee member) addresses 
full authority meeting(s)

Other 

 

 How do the senior figures in your authority demonstrate strong ethical values?

 

Through a strongly promoted whistle-blowing policy By ensuring there are references to ethics in the authority 
vision / objectives

Demonstrating appropriate behaviours Senior figure(s) makes personal commitment to standards 
in statements to public/employees

Through any other method

  Describe the "Other" ways that this is achieved.
At full Council this year members referred the matter to Standards Committee of 
whether they ought to include the register of interests on the website. Standards 
Committee agreed this and also to extend the website declarations to the register 
of gifts and hospitalities. This was agreed by full Council and is currently being 
implemented. 

 

 

Does your authority have a protocol for partnership working that outlines the 
standards of behaviour expected of all those working in partnership?
No 
 

 

What mechanisms does the authority use for dealing with member/officer and/or 
member/member disputes?

 

Informal discussion/mediation Monitoring Officer mediation

Chair of standards committee mediation Senior figure mediation (e.g. Chief Executive)

Advice from Human Resources department Solicitor / legal adviser consulted

Informal hearing No mechanisms other than normal complaints process

Other 

 

33



PART 3: TRAINING AND SUPPORT  

 

Between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2010, has the authority assessed the training and 
development needs of authority members in relation to their responsibilities on 
standards of conduct?
Yes 
 

 If yes, what needs were identified? 

 

Introduction to the Code of Conduct Elements of the Code of Conduct

The role and responsibilities of the standards committee Ethical governance/behaviour

None Other 

  Describe the "Other" needs that were identified.
Advice and training on pre-determination and bias. Although not a code of conduct 
issue it is so closely related to ethical conduct in meetings that it is considered 
hand in hand with Code issues. For this coming year it is becoming apparent that 
advice and training is needed in ethical conduct during the pre-election period so 
that this does not result in a breach of the code. 

 

 

What training/support was provided during the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 
2010?

 

Introduction to the Code of Conduct Elements of the Code of Conduct

Role and responsibilities of the standards committee Ethical governance/behaviour

None Other 

 

 Who received training/support?

 

Standards committee chair Independent members

Other standards committee members All authority members

Specific authority members with particular needs (e.g. new 
members, planning committee members)

Other 

 

 What methods were employed to give training/support?

 

Internal training (presentations/seminars/workshops) External trainer/speaker

One on one training Joint/regional training event

Online learning Guidance notes/briefing materials

Standards for England materials Ethical governance toolkit

Other 

 

 In which areas of the Code of Conduct has training/support been provided?

 

Respect Personal/Prejudicial Interests

Use of resources Bullying

Disrepute Predisposition, Pre-determination and bias

Equality Confidentiality

Other 

 

 

What other training/support has been provided on areas of an authority member’s 
role or activities they may engage in?

Chairing skills Lobbying

Predetermination, Predisposition and bias Blogging and/or the use of social media

34



  

 

Electioneering Freedom of Information (FOI)

None Other 

 

 In general, how well attended was the training provided?
25-50% 
 

 

Please give a brief overview of how standards issues are covered in your induction 
process for new members of the authority?
Members receive a one to one training with the Monitoring officer and deputy monitoring 
officer. Review of the induction process forms part of the work programme for the 
standards committee for the coming year 

 

In which areas of the role and responsibilities of the standards committee has 
training/support been provided for standards committee members? Please tick all 
that apply.

 

Initial assessments Other action/mediation

Reviews Investigations

Hearings Sanctions

Other 

 

35



  

PART 4: INVESTIGATIONS  

Have any investigations been completed 
during the period 1 April 2009 - 31 March 
2010? 

Yes 

 

How many investigations have been completed 
during this period?
2 
 
Have any of the investigations used 
external investigators?

No 

 

Of the investigations completed during the period, 
for how many have external investigators been 
used?
Nothing selected 
 
 
 
 

 

Please provide a brief overview of the processes you have in place to ensure the 
quality of local investigations.
There is an internal investigations team who conduct all the local investigations on 
behalf of Peterborough City Council and offer similar services to South and East Cambs 
Councils. The team is headed up by a manager holding an MA in Fraud Investigation, who 
acts as the quality control person for all investigation reports to the Standards 
Committee. She has over 11 years experience in investigations within local government. 
The investigations are primarily undertaken by an investigator with over 30 years 
experience in the police force who was an experienced Detective Sargeant. 

36



PART 5: RELATIONSHIPS WITH PARISH AND TOWN COUNCILS  

 

Has your authority provided training for parish councillors during the period 1 April 
2009 to 31 March 2010?
No 
 
 
 
 

 

Has your authority provided training for parish clerks during the period 1 April 2009 – 
31 March 2010?
No 
 
 
 
 

 

Does your council have a COMPACT (a formal agreement with your county 
Association of Local Councils about supporting standards for parish and town councils 
in the area)?
Yes 
 

 

Describe the relationship between your authority and your County Association of 
Local Councils in relation to standards. For example, how regularly do you interact 
with them? Are you involved in delivering joint training?
We are in regular contact with Ian Dewar who heads up the Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough Associations of Local Councils. Peterborough Association of Local Councils 
select parish members for the Standards Committee. There is a current ongoing seleciton 
process to select an additional parish member.  
 
The Council provides rooms for all PALC meetings. 
 
PALC provide all training on Code of Conduct and we update them on any changes to 
legislation, procedures and practice.  
 
The Monitoring Officer took a report to the Parish Council Liaison Committee in March in 
support of the proposed standing orders from the parish council toolkit which had been 
issued to the parishes by CPALC with a request that they implement those. The standing 
orders were in relation to notification of complaints and decisions under the Code of 
Conduct made against parish members.  
 

 

Standards for England and Teesside University are currently researching the role of 
the Parish Liaison Officer. Teesside University have created a brief questionnaire to 
assess the organisational background, functions and skills needed to carry out the 
Parish Liaison role. Does your authority have a Parish Liaison Officer?
Yes 

 

Does the Parish Liaison Officer (or the person who fulfils the same functions) consent 
for the University of Teesside to contact them to complete a brief questionnaire 
about their role?
No 
 

 

What steps have you taken when dealing with parishes which have had problems 
with standards issues? For example, what preventative or capacity building work 
have you done with parishes?
There have been no particular issues to date. This might be attributed to the Parish 
Council Liaison Committee. The Parish Council Liaison Officer is new to the role and 
therefore cannot give any examples of parish council issues over this past year (and also 
the reason why he cannot offer any assistance with the questionnaire. 
 

 

Which of the following areas would you like Standards for England to produce 
additional guidance on to support your work with parishes?

Lobbying Predetermination and bias

37



  

 

Planning and interests Dual-hatted members

Other

 

38



 End of form  

39



40

This page is intentionally left blank



WORK PROGRAMME FOR STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Meeting date:        Item no: 
 

SCHEDULE OF REGULAR ITEMS 
 
Item Frequency Date of next review 

 

• Review of complaints 
 
 

  

• Summary of new guidance  
 
 

  

• Conference feedback 
 
 

  

• Annual review of work programme (reported to Council) 
 
 

  

• Review of Constitution policies: 
 

• +  Planning 

• +  Code of Conduct and Member / Officer Protocol  

• +  Monitoring Office Protocol 
 

  

• Training (Standards Committee and Council 
 
 

  

• Report on quarterly and annual returns 
 
 

  

• Review terms of reference of Standards Committee 
 
 

  

 

 

APPENDIX 5 

4
1



WORK PROGRAMME FOR STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Meeting date:        Item no: 
 

SPECIFIC TASKS 
 
 

 

Task  
 

Assign dates  

• Monitoring Officer protocol and service level agreement 
 
 

  

• Review local assessment criteria (official capacity / delay) 
 
 

  

• Assessment / Review / Hearing handbook 
 
 

  

• Review processes and procedures for complaints 
 
 

  

• Report on indemnity for Members of Standards Committee 
 
 

  

• Appointment of Parish Council Members  
 
 

  

 

4
2



 

 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 5 

9 June 2010 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Monitoring Officer Helen Edwards Solicitor to the Council Tel. 452539 

Report author Kim Sawyer Head of Legal Services and Deputy Monitoring 
Officer 

Tel: 452361 

 
REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
 

1. That the Committee members note the contents of the annual report to Council and makes any 
suggestions regarding additions to the report 

 

 
 
CONTENTS OF REPORT 
 

1. This report considers the annual report to Council 
 
 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

2. The annual report 

  
2.1 The Standards Committee has generally reported annually to the Council on the work it 

undertakes. 
 
2.2 The proposed annual report is attached to this report and comments are invited from 

members of the Committee on the contents of the report, in particular any aspects of the 
work undertaken by the Standards Committee in the last civic year. 

 
2.3 The next meeting of the Council takes place on the 14 July 2010 
 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
3. A copy of this report is sent to each parish council and they are invited to comment upon 

the contents.  Any response from the parishes will be verbally reported to the Committee. 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
  

None 
 

43



44

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
COUNCIL REPORT 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM  

14 JULY 2010 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Contact Officer(s): Helen Edwards, Solicitor to the Council & Monitoring Officer 

Kim Sawyer Head of Legal & Deputy Monitoring Officer 

Tel. 452539 

Tel: 452361 

 
ANNUAL REPORT OF STANDARDS COMMITEE 

 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : STANDARDS COMMITTEE  

 
 
 

That Council  
(1) notes the work carried out by the Standards Committee, and endorses and supports the 

priorities for the coming year 
(2) agrees to extend the maximum term of office to be served by any independent member to 3 

successive terms 
(3) agrees the extend the membership of the Standards Committee to include a further parish 

council substitute member and delegates authority to the Standards Committee to appoint to 
that position upon nomination by the Peterborough Association of Local Councils.  

 

 
1.  FOREWARD BY THE CHAIR OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 

1.1 As Independent Chair of the Standards Committee, one of my main aims is to create a sense of 
“ethical wellbeing” in this authority and to make high standards of conduct 'business as usual' 
rather than damage limitation when something goes wrong.  I endorse the Standards for England 
view that the independent members are here to encourage a culture of high standards in 
Peterborough City Council and independent members have chosen to do so by proactively 
encouraging good conduct and, wherever appropriate, using informal resolution by having 
respectful but direct discussions with councillors if we feel they are choosing to act in a manner 
that poorly reflects their office.  My purpose is to encourage the members of this Council to take 
the opportunity to reinforce their individual position as leaders in standards of conduct, setting an 
example to other bodies they work with, and to the community at large. This is not to say that we 
do not hold councillors formally to account; just that this is the last, not first, resort.  

 
1.2 I am encouraged by the work undertaken by the Committee over this last year and the 

diminishing number and seriousness of complaints being made to the Committee.  I am grateful 
that councillors have without exception accepted our non-political role and locally focussed 
approach.  I am satisfied that by setting out our agenda for this coming year in our work 
programme we will be well placed to demonstrate to the people of Peterborough how ethics are 
embedded within the operation of this Council. 

 
 
2.  THE FORMAT OF THIS REPORT 

 

2.1 This report will consider each of the following areas: 
 

• The members of the Standards Committee 

• The need to increase parish council membership of the Committee 

• The work programme of the Committee for the past and the coming year 

• Statistical information about the number and types of complaints made to the Committee 

• A look at current issues in ethics 

• The role of the Monitoring Officer in advising on the Code of Conduct 

45



 

3. THE MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE 

 

3.1 At its meeting on the 17 March 2010 the Standards Committee considered two recommendations 
to make to this Council meeting concerning its composition.   

 
3.2 The Standards Committee wished to recommend to Council that the maximum term of office that 

can be served by an independent member should be increased from two successive terms (as 
recommended by Standards for England) to three successive terms.  Towards the end of this 
year and the early part of next year all of the independent members come to end of their term of 
office.  This recommendation will ensure that the two most experienced independent members of 
the Committee can apply again for the independent positions as they arise.  Council is able to 
agree this if it is satisfied that the independence of the position is not affected by extension of the 
terms of office. 

 
3.3 The Standards Committee also recommended to Council that the Chair and the Vice-Chair of the 

Committee for the coming civic year should be Steve Boast and Ann Smith respectively and it 
notes that this was agreed at the Annual Council meeting in May.  

 
3.4 The Committee also agreed in April to increase the membership of the Standards Committee to 

allow for the appointment of a substitute parish council member.  The increase was necessary to 
allow the proper administration of the complaints process in the event that the current parish 
members are conflicted out.  The parish Council member for [ ] parish has been appointed to this 
position. 

 
4. THE WORK PROGRAMME 

 

4.1 Having spent much of the previous year implementing the new regime for handling complaints, 
the Committee wanted to concentrate its efforts this past year on developing a work programme.  
The work programme was presented to its first meeting in October 2009 and has been reviewed 
at each subsequent meeting since. 

 
4.2 The work of the Standards Committee to date has included 

• Publicising the register of interests and gifts and hospitality on the website 

• Developing a communications plan 

• [add here] 
 
4.3 The work programme for the coming year aims to concentrate its efforts on embedding ethics 

within the Council in a practical manner.  For example, the Committee realised that it has not 
always been possible to get members together for training on the Code of Conduct because of 
their particularly busy schedules, so it has been looking for other ways in which to train the 
members without requiring them to find additional time in their diaries to meet this obligation.  
Over this past year the independent members of the Committee each attended a Neighbourhood 
Council meeting and spoke on the role of the Standards Committee and the Code of Conduct.  In 
this way, the Committee was able to provide training to members of the Council whilst at the 
same time demonstrate the work it does to the public.  Over this coming year it would like to look 
at how it might improve upon the induction process as a means of embedding ethics.  The 
Committee is also working with the Strategic Governance Board to move forward with web pages 
dedicated to governance issues. 

 
5.  STATISTICAL INFORMATION 

 

5.1 The Committee receives statistical information about the number of complaints and their 
progress at each meeting in the form of a table attached to a standard report on performance. 

 
5.2 Over the past year the Assessment Sub Committee has sat 4 times to hear 6 complaints.  Of 

these complaints 5 resulted in no further action being taken (83%), 0 resulted in investigations 
and 1 was resolved by means of other action (17%) which the Committee felt was appropriate to 
the matter complained of. 

46



 
5.3 The Review Sub-Committee sat once to reconsider a complaint where the Assessment Sub-

Committee decided to take no further action on a complaint.  The outcome of this hearing was to 
take no further action. 

 
5.4 Over the course of the past year, 7 investigations were concluded from the previous year and 

that resulted in 3 (43%) complaints going to formal hearings (only 2 hearings were held as two of 
the complaints related to the same Councillor so were heard on the same occasion). 

 
5.5 The outcome of hearings was to find a breach of the code of conduct in all 3 cases resulting in 

the following sanctions: 
 

• request a written apology and censure the Councillor in the first hearing and; 

• provide further training on the Code of Conduct to include acceptable behaviour in 
public life for the second hearing. 

 
5.6 How does this compare nationally?  Standards for England recorded complaints from 345 

authorities during May 2008 to March 2009 (the 2009-10 Annual Review is due to be published 
around September this year) and 128 authorities did not receive any complaints.   

 
5.7 Of the complaints received nationally 53% warranted no further action, 29% were referred for 

investigation, 12% were referred to the Monitoring Officer for action and 6% were referred to 
Standards for England. 

 
5.8 Of the 780 investigations conducted, 233 were completed locally of which; 158 (68%) found no 

breach of the code, 56 (24%) imposed a penalty or sanction and 10 (4.3%) found a breach but 
no further action was imposed (other hearing results were not submitted at the time). 

 
6. CURRENT ISSUES IN ETHICS 
 

6.1 The Government has announced in its manifesto entitled “The coalition: our plans for 
Government” that it intends to abolish the Standards Board regime.  A “Decentralisation and 
Localism” bill was announced during the Queen’s speech on 25 May which re-iterated the 
intention to abolish the Standards Board regime. No further detail is yet available on when this is 
likely to take place or whether this means that the Code of Conduct will survive the abolition of 
the Standards Board.  Further information will be provided to the Committee as this becomes 
available. 

 
7. CONSULTATION 

 The Committee distributes copies of its reports to each of the parish councils within the 
Peterborough area.  It invites comments from the parishes on any of those reports to be given to 
the Monitoring Officer who reports those comments to the Standards Committee.  This report will 
be distributed in a similar manner. 

 
8.  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
The Standards Committee believes that Council’s endorsement of the contents of this report will 
enable it to fulfil the function of promoting high standards of ethical behaviour within the authority.  

 

9. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
The Council is required to set up a Standards Committee by the Local Government Act 2000. 
The Council could maintain a Standards Committee which has a more limited vision and work 
programme.  This option was rejected because it is important that the Council has a strong 
Standards Committee to encourage and maintain a high standard of ethical behaviour.  To do 
otherwise would restrict the Council’s ability to operate effectively.  

 
10. IMPLICATIONS 
 

47



 There are no financial or legal implications, other than those contained within the body of the 
report. 

 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 Reports to the Standards Committee in the last civic year 
 
 
 

48


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 17 March 2010
	4 Monitoring Officer's Report
	4a. COMPLAINT monitoring
	4b. 1001 - 1005 PEP Voting Analysis - January - May 2010
	4c. 2010 06 - App J (Draft AGS 1 02)
	4d. dataAn2010-10778
	4e. Work Programme for Standards Committee

	5 Annual Report for Council
	5a. Standards report


